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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi fbrahim Shaker Company
Report on the audil of the consolidated financial statements
Our apiﬁion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™)
as at December 31, 2023, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional
Accountants (SOCPA).

‘What we have audited
The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
Jor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Internatignal Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants
{(including International Independence Standards), endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arahia (the “Code”), that is

relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code’s requirements.

Our audit approach

Overview

Key Audit Matters # Impairment of trade and other receivables

»  Valuation of investment in associates

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where the directors made suhjective judgements; for
example, in respect of significant aceounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of
internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the accounting processes
and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, License No. 25,
Kingdom Tower, P.O. Box 8282, Riyadh 11482, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
T: +966 (11) 211-0400, F: +966 (11) 211-0401, www.pwe.com/middle-east
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company

{continued)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

‘Kry audit matter

Impairment of trade and other receivables

As at December 31, 2023, the Group’s gross trade and
other receivables balance was SR 356 million (2022: SR
305 million) with an associated provision for
impairment loss of SR 41 million (2022: SR 66 million).

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether the
trade and other receivables {carried at amortised cost)
are credit-impaired. The Group’s management has
applied a simplified expected credit loss (“ECL") modet
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standard ¢ (“TFRS 9), to determine the allowance for
impairment of trade and other receivables. The ECL
mode] invalves the use of various assumptions, macro-
economic factors and study of historical trends relating
to the Group's trade and other receivables collections
experience.

We considered this as a key audit matter as the
management applies significant judgment in
determining an appropriate impairment loss allowance
for receivables including macro-economic factors and
the caleulation of the fime value for money.

Refer to Note 2.2 (q) for the aceounting policy and Note
6 for the related disclosures in the accompanying
consolidated finrancial statements.

How our audit addressed the Kiy audit matter

Our audit procedures related to impairment losses on
trade and other receivables included:

» Obtained an understanding of the design and
implementation of key controls over the process of
ECL calculation.

»  Obtained management’s model for the impairment
assessment and tested key assumptions, including
those used to calculate the likelihood of default, by
comparing to historical data and challenging these
assumptions. We also considered the incorporation
of forward looking macro-economic factors to
reflect the impact of future events on expected
credit losses. We also tested the arithmetical
accuracy of the model.

e On a sample basis, we tested the accuracy of the
historical data and aging analysis of trade and other
receivables used as inputs to the ECL model.

«  Weinvolved our internal valuation expert to assist
us in reviewing the medeling framework in
computing provisions under TFRS 9 for trade and
other receivables including reviewing the model
methodology and the ECL computation on a
sample basis.

s Performed sensitivity analysis over the reasonably
possible changes in the GDP with all other variables
and challenged the management assumption with
respect to the consideration of GDP being the key
macro-economic factor, in order 1o assess the
potential impact of a range of possible outcomes.

=  Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the
related disclosures in the accompanying financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company
(continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Valuation of investment in associates

As at December 31, 2023, the carrying value of the
Group's investment in its associates amounted to SR
467 million (2022; SR 466 million). [

The Group is exposed to the risk of impairment of its |
equity-accounted  investee, dependent on the
performance of the investee and the environment in
which it operates. The Group’s management considers I
whether there are indicators of impairment with respect
to the investment in its associates and conducts its
impairment test on an at least annual basis to assess the
recoverability of the investment using the value-in-use
madel.

Impairment assessment of this investment requires
significant judgment with respect ta future sales growth
and profitability of the investee, cashflow projections
and selection of appropriate discount rate. Further,
there is a risk that the carrying value of the investment
and any related impairment charge may be incorrect,

We considered the valuation of the investment in the
Group’s associates as a key audit matter due to the
significant judgment and assumptions involved in the
impairment assessment process, and the significant
amount it represents as a proportion of the Group’s
total assets.

Refer to 2.2 (d) for the accounting policy and Note 7 for
the related disclosures in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements,

Our audit procedures related to the valuation of
investment in associates included:

»  Obtained an understanding of the design and
implementation of key controls over the valuation
of the Group’s investment in associates.

+  Utilized our internal valuations expert to assess the
valuation approach and methodology and key
assumptions used by management in their value-
in-use calculation. Further, we have evaluated the
appropriateness of the model used by management
and assessed the reasonableness of significant
management assumptions in respect of estimated
future cash flows, sales growth, profitability of
associate and discount rates, and we performed a
sensitivity analysis on these key assumptions.

s  Compared management’s assumptions and applied
our understanding of the future prospects of the
business from internal and external sources and
compared the forecasts to the historical past
performance of the associate.

»  Agsessed the completeness and accuracy of the
information used by the Group management as the
basis of their assessment.

#  Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the
related disclosures in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company
{continued)

Other information >

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annua) Report of the
Group (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this anditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the Annual Report of the Group, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and those charged with governance for the consolidated
Jinancial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, and the applicable requirements of the
Regulations for Companies and the Company’s By-laws, and for such internal control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial staternents, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, i.e., the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financtal
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statentents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ar the overnide of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the ¢ircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company
(vontinued)

Auditor’s responsihilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direetion, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requiremnents regarding independence, and to cormmunicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Khalid A. Mahdhar
License Number 368

March 05, 2024



Al HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHTW SHAKER COMPANY

(A Sandi Joint Stock Company)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Posibon

{All amounts in thoussnds of Saudi Riyals unless othorwisc stated)

Notes
Assets
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 4.1
Right-of-use assets 4.2
Intangible assets 5
Investment in associates 7
Equity investment at fair valuc through other comprehensive
ncome
Total non-corrent assets

Current agsets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepayments and other debt batances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Assets relating to disposal gronp elassified as held for sale 322
Total assets

o > m

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Share capital 11
Reserves 12
Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-vontrolling interests 13
Tuotal equity

Liabilities

Non-current Labilitivs

Lease liabilities and bormowings 14
Employees’ benefits obtigation 15
Total non-current Liabilides

Current liabilities

Leusc liabilities and harrmwings i
Trade and othar payables 16
Zakat liabilities 7
Warranty provision 18
Total current liabilities

Liabilities relating to disposal group classified as held forsale  32.2
Total liabilities

Tatal equity and liabilities

December 31, December 31,
2023 2023
176,556 178,306
17,552 24,071
9,854 v.854
466,959 466,174
it -

7, 6 £l gig
ATETH 414,349
A5 Dy 304,685
B, gog 63,079
18 847 72,711
837,154 854,824
- Ha 73

1,50, Ba g LG8 065
482,334 482,354
144,348 144,348

91,047 27521
717,720 fi54,203
- 18,042
717,729 672,243
11,229 16,352
_24.430 20,808
35,659 37,161
402,366 550,275
333,572 312,430
6,542 10,574
12,957 14,189
755437 887,469
- IE,DEIO

791,096 943,720 _
1,508,825 1,615,065

The accompanying notes on the pages from 10 1o 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financizl statements,
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Chairman Chief Exerutive Officer
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAH M SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consqlidated statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
{All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless atherwise stated)

For the year ended
December 31,
Notes 2023 2022

Revenuey 20 1,236,237 1,037,226
Cost of sales ai {918,474} (799,583)
Gross profit 317,763 237,643
General and administrative expenses 24 (95,571) (Bo610)
Selling and distribution expenses 23 (133,793) (108,083}
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables 6 (1,440) {10,660)
QOther income 22 2,191 4,047
Income from operations 89,151 42,357
Finance costs 25 (50,4830 (22,194)
Other expense — foreign exchange loss awg) (1,988)
Share of net profit from investment in associates 7 i i R Teris)
Income before zalat T3.2R4 41,954
Zaknt expense 17 {8.459) {10954)
Net income for the year from continuing operations __64,834 3,000
Discantinued operations
Gain from discontinned operations 32 1,452 3,109
Nct income for the year 66,280 34,100
Other comprehenstive iIncome
fterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of the employees’ benefits ohligation 15 _ (1.901) _ {n,576)
Other comprehensive loss for the yoar {1,901) {L,576)
Continuing operations {1,9010) (1.564)
Discontinued operations = Qz)
Total comprehensive income for the year 64,385 32,533
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 65,427 32,832
Noni-controlling interests £3 859 1,277

66,286 34,100
Total comprehensive income attributable tot
Dumere of the Company 63,526 31,268
Non-controlling interests 859 1,265

64,385 32,533
Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted carnings per share 26 36 0.68

The accompanying notes on the pages from 10 to 53 forn: an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AL HASSAN GHAZI
{A Baudi Joimt Stock

Consolidated Statement of Change n Eqaity

1BRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(Alt amounie In thousands of Ssud) Rivale unlem otherwise stated)
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Non-
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IERAHTIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows

{(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Noles
Cash flows from operating activitics
Income before zakat:
Contiring operations
Discontinued operations
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depracialion of property and cquipment 4.1
Depreating of right-of-use azsels
Asanisation of mtangible assets
Impaitment tosses on inventories
Impairment losses ont lrade and nther receivables
Share of profit fram invesiment in associates
Gain from sale of properly and equipinent
Finance costs 25,12
Giain on dispom] of a subsidiary az
Pravision for cmployers’ benefits obligation 15

-qa«mmﬁ

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Prepayments and other dels balanices

Trade and other payables

Warmanty proviuon

Cagh generated from / (used In} operating actvihes

Finance cost paid 14
Zakyt patd 7
Employess’ beuefils obligativug paid 15
Net cash generated firom f (used in) operating activides

Cash flows from investing activitiea

Additions of property and equiprnent 4.1
Frassads iram sale of propary and equipment

Addibices o investment in sssssies

Additions to equity investment al foir value through other comprehensive

m
Proceed from sale of 3 subsidiary 3z
Dividends received 7

Net cash genecated from / (used in) iwesting activities

Cash flows fcom linancing aclivities

Proceeds from bank borcowings 14
Repayment of bunk bofrowings 14
Peyment of jcase abilitics

Change in nan-controliing interests

Net cagh (used in) / genersied from fAinancing avtivitics

Net {decrensc) [ inerease in cash end cash cquivolents
Crsh and cash equivalents at Lie beginning of the year

Cash and ¢ash squivalents of disposal group classified as bold for sale az.2
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10
MNon cash transactons:

‘Frade receivables write off 6
Inveniones impairmaent losses utibzed dunng the yesr L]
Re-measurement of the employees' henefits obligatian 15
Addition to right-of-ue assets and lease Habilities 4.2
Capital decrease L
Asziels reluting to disposal group classified as held for sale 32
tiabilities veliting Lo dispysal grou, dhesifed as hold for sale 32
Sale of 3 subsidiary | I:_-g""r Manggemenl Sa vices Eminates LLC) 32

A ’
w};ﬂ:ﬁlm on the pages from 10 to 53 form an integ
' E. [ ]

. il

LS .Eﬁu'ah Aheluliah Ahusarcin foham 1 AU Y

Chairman ubive Officer

For the year endcd
Deccmber 31,
2023 222
73,284 41,954
1,452 3,109
3943 72010
6,519 5761
s 174
1,473 7.591
1,440 1,083
(ad,n0) (23,770}
(zz1} 855)
51,483 22935
(L,452)
L 3,246 2
108,027 78.a31
35898 {86,5635)
(52,785) 28,056
(25,462) (24,936)
1,141 129}
L1 232} 29530
HE. 4% LEsEL
L, 764] {=3 379)
{iz.482) hFE)
15051 [ PP
=0 Bk [T L]
{z,203) {1,689}
261 1,007
(1,425} L
{730} '
27,534 .
o .
biw, b7 [LEN
2,079,560 LobLaB1
iz zabigs) {1.891492)
[EF e 1] (67003
18,501 -
- .- ) SR80
(53.868) 27,67
78,711 5,020
- {7,980}
1884 701
26,1906 (2:3.679)
(22,4432) {4,140}
L9071 (1,576)
- 22976
- £147,660)
d 2,736
# (1y.oye)
- 3,500

r1 of these consolidaied fina




AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

1 Status and nature of activities

Al Hassan Ghazi Ibrahim Shaker Company (the “Company” (or) the “Parent Company” (or) “HGISC”) was registered as
a limited liability Company in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration number 1010149252 dated
26 Dhu al-Qadah 1418H (correspending to March 25, 1998). The Company converted from a limited liability company
to a closed joint stock company pursuant to the Ministerial Resolution No. 275 on 17 Shaban 1429H (corresponding to
August 18, 2008).

The Parent Company offered 10.5 million shares to public, during the subscription period from April 26, 2010
{corresponding to 11 Jumada al-Awwal 1431H) to May 2, 2010 (corresponding to 17 Jumada al-Awwal 1431H). The
Parent Company’s shares started trading in the Saudi Stock Exchange on May 17, 2010 (corresponding to 3 Jumada al-
Thani 1431H). Accordingly, after successful completion of the IPO (Initial Public Offering Process), the Parent Company
was declared as a Saudi Joint Stock Company with a share capital of SR 350 million, divided into 35 million shares of
SR 10 each. On March 29, 2015, a bonus of four shares for every five ordinary shares outstanding was issued and
resultantly the share capital of the Company was increased from SR 350 million to SR 630 million.

The Company's shareholders approved during the Extracrdinary General Assembly Meeting held on 14 Shawwal, 1443H
(corresponding to May 15, 2022) the decrease in share capital of SR 147.666 million through absorbing accurnulated
losses with the same amount. The legal formalities for capital decrease were finalized on June 19, 2022,

On December 13, 2023, the Patent Company announced the board’s recommendation to extraordinary General
Assembly to increase the capital by 15% by granting bonus shares to the Company’s shareholders by capitalizing SR 72.7
million from Reserves. The legal formalities for issuance of the bonus shares are still in process till the date of issuance
of these consolidated financial statements.

As at December 31, 2023, the authorized, issued, and paid-up share capital of the Company is SR 482.3 million divided
into 48.2 million shares of SR 10 each. As at December 31, 2022, the authorized, issued, and paid-up share capital of the
Company was SR 482.3 million divided into 48.2 million shares of SR 10 each.

The Parent Company is engaged in the trading and wholesale of spare parts, electronic equipment, household
equipment and air-conditioners, maintenance of the items mentioned above and providing agency services to those
companies which are in the same business.

The Company’s registered office is located at the following address: Shaker Group Building, Alsahafa District, King
Fahad Road, Riyadh 11422, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

These consolidated financial statements include the financial position and performance of the Company and its
branches as well as the following subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group™).

Name Principal field of activity Country of Effective ownership interest at
incorporation 31 December
2023 2022

Ibrahini Shaker Company Limited ~ Wholesale of household

(“ISCL”) appliances Saudi Arabia 100% 100%
Ibrahim Hussein Shaker Projects

and Maintenance Company Import, export and marketing

Limited(IHSCL) services Saudi Arabia 100% 100%
ASDAA Gulf Trading Company

(*ASDAA™") Wholesale of electronic devices  Saudi Arabia 100% 100%
Shaker Innovative Investment Financial and insurance

Company activities Saudi Arabia 100% 100%
Shaker Contracting Service Constructions Saudi Arabia 100% 0%
Shaker Resilience for logistic services Transportation and Storage Saudi Arabia 100% 0%
New Vision for Electronics and Import, export and maintenance

Electrical Appliances Company of electrical and home

{(“NVEEAC) appliances Jordan 0% 60%

10



Al HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

1 Status and nature of activities (continued}
The Group has branches which are operating under separate commercial regisirations. Details of these branches are as
follows:
Commercial
Branch location Registration Commercial Registration Date
Branches of HGISC ~ Parent Company
Buraidah 1131014566 July 20,1999 {7 Rabi” al-Thani 1420H)
Khamis Mushait 5855025901 April 13,2005 (4 Rabi’ al-Awwal 1426H)
Khobar 2051029431 May 2,2004 {13 Rabi’ al-Awwal 1425H)
Jeddah 4030102685 April 3,1994 (21 Shawwal 1414 H)
Riyadh 1010685573 February 5, 2022 (22 Jumada al-Thani 1442H)
Riyadh 1010411362 April 20,2014 (20 Jumada al-Thani 1435H})
Madina 4650035002 May 5,2004 (15 Rabi’ al- Awwal 1425 H)
Mecca 4031213336 March 20,2018 (3 Rajab 1439H)

Branches of Ibrahim Shaker Company Limited — subsidiary

Jeddah 4030034475 May 10, 1982 (16 Rajab 1402H)

Khobar 2051010124 July 14, 1984 (15 Shawwal 1404H)

Buraidah 1131020925 June 14, 2005 (7 Jumada al-Awwal 1426H)
Khamis Mushait 5855027659 January 30, 2007 (11 Muharram 1428H)
Najran 5950028155 November 3, 2013 (29 Dhu al-Hijjah 1434H)
Riyvadh 1010045129 June 7, 1982 (15 Sha’ban 1402 H)

Tabuk 3550039676 January 15, 2018 (27 Rabi al-Thani 1439H)
Jeddah 4030043910 June 3, 1984 (4 Ramadan 1404H)

Jeddah 4030298838 January 15, 2018 (27 Rabi al-Thani 1439H)
Jizan 5900112066 January 22, 2018 (5 Jumada al-Awwal 1439H)
Dammam 2050115449 January 3o, 2018 (13 Jumada al-Awwal 1439H)
Jeddah 4030034931 June 9, 1982 (16 Shaban 1402H)

Hafer Albatain 2511026698 January 30, 2018 (13 Jumada al-Awwal 1439H)

Jeddah
Riyadh

4030159728
1010434932

Branch of ASDAA Gulf Trading Company — subsidiary

Riyadh

1010243196

February 6, 2006 (7 Muharram 1427H)
June 15, 2015 (28 Sha’ban 1436H)

January 26,2008 (17 Muharram 1429H)

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on February 27, 2024.
2 Basis of preparation and material accounting policies

Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies are consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

a)  Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements
issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (SOCPA), hereafter referred to as
“IFRS".

The amounts in the consolidated financial statements have been presented in $audi Riyals (SR} with all values
rounded to the nearest thousand except where stated otherwise.

b)  Historic cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the defined benefit

plan which is measured at present value of future obligations using Projected Unit Credit Method. Further, the
consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and going concern concept.
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Al HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Comipany)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
¢}  Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprising the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group include assets,
liabilities and the results of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries, as set out in note {1). The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which contrcl commences until the date on which control ceases. The Group accounts for the business
combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred
in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identified net assets acquired and fair value of pre-
existing equity interest in the subsidiary. The excess of the cost of acquisition and amount of Non-Controlling Interest
(“NCI") over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. NCI is measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
at the date of acquisition. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries are aligned, where necessary, to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group. The Company and its subsidiaries have the same reporting periods.

d})  Going concern

The Group had negative cash flows from operations for the year ended December 31, 2022. However, the financial
performance of the Group has improved during the current year due to the increase in the sales volumes and other
measures which has resulted in a profit and a retained earnings position. During the year ended December 31, 2023,
the Group reported a total comprehensive income of SR 64.4 million (2022: total comprehensive income of SR 32.5
million) and, as of that date, reported retained earnings of SR 91 million. The Group continues to manage its trading
activities, supply chain and collections of its receivables. Further, the Group’s ability to meet its obligations as they
become due, depends on its ability to manage the current downturn in economic activities and in subsequent periods
enhancement of its results and cash flows, continued improvements in its working capital and the renewal or
refinancing of loan facilities. As of December 31, 2023, the Company’s unused credit facilities amounted to SR 1,259
million (2022: SR 421 million).

2,2 Material accounting policies
a})  New Standards, Amendment to Standards and Interpretations

The Group has considered applying the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing on or after 1 January 2023:

e IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts" (issued on 18 May 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023).

o  Amendments to IFRS 17 and an amendment to IFRS 4 (issued on 25 June 2020 and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).

»  Transition option to insurers applying IFRS 17 — Amendments to IFRS 17 (issued on 9 December 2021 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).

¢ Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2; Disclosure of Accounting policies (issued on 12
February 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).

¢ Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates (issued on 12 February 2021 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).

¢  Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction — Amendments to 1AS 12
{issued on 7 May 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).

o Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes: International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules {issued 23 May
2023).

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.
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Al HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thonsands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices {continued)

2,2 Material accounting policies {continued)

b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Following are the new standards and amendments to standards which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2024, and earlier application is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted them in
preparing these financial statements.

s  Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture - Amendments to IFRS
10 and TAS 28 (issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
specified by the IASB).

e Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (issued on 22 September 2022
and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024).

* Classification of liabilities as current or non-current — Amendments to IAS 1 (originally issued on 23
January 2020 and subsequently amended on 15 July 2020 and 31 October 2022, ultimately effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024).

¢ Amendments to IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures: Supplier
Financing Arrangements (issued on 25 May 2023).

»  IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferred Accounts (issued on 30 January 2014 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

Unless otherwise stated above, it is not expected that the new standards and interpretations will have a significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

¢)  Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method when the control is transferred to the Group.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred which is measured at
acquisition date fair value, and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed
asincurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent
consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured, and
settlement is accounted for within equity, Otherwise, other contingent consideration is remeasured at fair value at
each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit
or loss.
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
{All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued)
2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)
¢} Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognized for non-controlling interest (NCI), and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed).

If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in
an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

d)  Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or over those policies.

The Group’s investments in its associates and is accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in associates is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the
investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition
date. Goodwill relating to the associates is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither
amortised, nor individually tested for impairment.

The profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in OCI of those
investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in
the equity of the associate, the Group recognized its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of
changes in equity {Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and is shown on the face of the statement of profit
or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries
of the associate.

The financial statements of the associates is prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the aceounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an impairment loss
on its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, then recognized
the loss as *‘Share of profit of an associate in the profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognized any retained investment at

its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued)
2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)
e}  Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be recognize or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

Expected to be recognize within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

e o @ @

The Group classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current
P Fair valte measurement
The Group measures certain financial instruments and non-financial assets at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
o Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valration techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, recognized the use of relevant observable inputs and recognized the use of
unobservable inpuis. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are recognized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

s Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

s Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable.

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

To measure the fair value of properties, the Group engages an independent valuer who holds a recognized and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the asset being valued.
Management reviews valuer’s report and assesses appropriateness of assumptions and valuation techniques and the
overall reasonableness of valuation. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of
assets baged on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained
above.
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued}
2,2 Material accounting policies (continued)
) Fair value measurement (continued)

For financial instruments quoted in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices.
Bid prices are used for assets and offer prices are used for liabilities. The fair value of investments in mutual fands,
unit trusts or similar investment vehicles are based on the last published net assets value for unquoted financial
instruments fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a similar investment, discounted cash flows,
other appropriate valuation models or brokers” quotes.

For financial instruments carried at amortised cost, the fair value is estimated by discounting future cash flows at the
current market rate of return for similar financial instruments. For investments in equity instruments, where a
reasonable estimate of fair value cannot be determined, the investment is carried at cost.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

g)  Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duty. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude, and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. The
specific recognition criteria described below must alse be met before revenue is recognized.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when a customer obtains controls of the goods at a point in time i.e. on
delivery and acknowledgement of goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

For volume rebates a refund liability is recognized for expected volume discount payable to customers in relation to
sales made until the end of the reporting period.

The Group provides normal warranty provisions for general repairs for two, five and ten years on all its products
sold, in line with industry practice. A liability for potential warranty claims is recognized at the time the product is
sold.

Rendering of services

Revenue from service is recognized when obligation is performed or services are rendered, by reference to the stage
of completion. Stage of completion is measured by reference to labor hours incurred to date as a percentage of total
estimated labor hours for each contract. When the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is
recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Generally the Group recognizes revenue from services related to installation of products, repairs or maintenance
service when control is transferred being over the time the service is provided. For service contracts covering a longer
period revenue is recognized on a linear basis over the contract period.

Professional consultancy fees

The Group provides consultancy services for energy value analysis during the design phase of projects and
developments. Revenue from consultancy services is recognized when the obligation is performed, or services have
been rendered as per the terms and condition of the respective customer contracts.

Revenue is recognized overtime when the services have been rendered as per the terms and conditions of the

respective customer contracts. Any amounts remaining unbilled at the end of the reporting period are presented in
the consclidated statement of financial position as contract assets.

16



AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued)
2,2 Material accounting policies {continued)
R} Contract balances

In case of fixed-price contracts, the customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. If the services
rendered by the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payments exceed the services
rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

i) Zakat and Taxation
Zakat and income tax

The Parent Company and domestic subsidiaries are subject to zakat in accordance with the regulations of Zakat and
Tax and Customs Authority (“ZATCA"). Foreign subsidiaries are subject to the relevant income tax regulations in
their countries of domicile. Group’s zakat and its share in the foreign subsidiaries income tax are accrued and charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income currently. Additional zakat and
foreign income tax liabilities, if any, related to prior years’ assessments are accounted for in the period in which the
final assessments are finalized,

Withholding tax

The Group withholds taxes on transactions with non-resident parties in accordance with applicable ZATCA
regulations.

Taxation on foreign subsidiaries

Taxation on foreign subsidiaries is calculated on the basis of the tax rates applicable and prescribed according to the
prevailing laws, regulations and instructions of the countries where these subsidiaries operate. Income tax payable
on taxable profit (“current tax”) is recognized as an expense in the period in which the profits arise in accordance
with the fiscal regnlations of the respective countries in which the subsidiary operates.

B Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals, which is the Company’s functional currency and
the Group’s presentation currency. Each subsidiary in the Group determines its own functional currency (which is
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates), and as a result, items included in
the financial statements of each subsidiary are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are translated into Saudi Riyals using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the
period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The results and financial position of foreign
operations {(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the Group's presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows: - assets and
liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position; « income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates
of the transactions). On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, are insignificant.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date,

k)  Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the

Parent Company’s shareholders. Dividends for the year that are approved after the consolidated statement of
financial position date are disclosed as an event after the consolidated statement of financial position date.
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued)
2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)
D Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accurnulated impairment losses. When
assets are sold or retired, i.e., when risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, their cost and
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If significant parts of an item of property and equipment
have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and
equipment.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis to their residual values over the estimated
useful lives of property and equipment as follows and is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Years
Buildings 40
Motor vehicles 5
Furniture and office equipment 6.67
Tools and equipment
Leasehold improvements The lease term or useful life whichever is shorter

The useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits arising from items of property and equipment.

m) Leases

The Group leases real estate represented in warehouses and buildings. The duration of such lease contracts is between
one to 5 years and some of these contracts have the option to extend the lease period.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
niet present value of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs,
and restoration costs.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

¢  where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted
to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received.

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third-party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.
If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market

data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the Group uses that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued)
2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

m)  Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the underlying asset’s useful life

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less without a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

n})  Loans and borrowing costs

Loans are initially calculated at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Loans are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognized in profit or loss over the period of the loans using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fees are deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down, the fees are
amortized over the period of the facilities to which they relate.

0)  Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure
is reflected in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period, residual value and the
amortisation methed for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected patter of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangibie assets with finite lives is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash
generating unit level, Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

p)  Investments and other financial assets
(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (gither through OCI or through profit or loss), and
o  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those asssets changes.
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2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued)
2.2 Material accounting policies {(continued)

p)  Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(ii) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

(ifi}) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses {(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its FA instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The Group de-recognizes financial liabilities when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
The Group also de-recognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at
fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial
liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

g)  Impairment of financial instrumenis

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equivalent to a credit loss over the lifetime of the debt, except for
the following:

- Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on financial assets has increased significantly if it is more than 9o days past
due.
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2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued)
2,2 Material accounting policies (continued)

q)  Impairment of financial instruments {continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- Theborrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realizing security (if any is held); or

- default of the financial asset for g0 days or more from its maturity date.

Management considers ‘low credit risk’ for financial assets to be customers with good credit history and no historical
default,

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from other events that are possible over 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have an adverse effect on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is of impaired credit includes the following ohservable data:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- Abreach of contract such as default or delinquency for a period of more than 9o days;

- Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial restructuring; or
~  The disappearance of an active market for the security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

Write-off

The carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

r)  Inventories

Inventories are presented at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based on the weighted
average principle. In the case of manufactured inventory materials and work in progress, cost inclides an appropriate
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. A provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving
items when needed.

Net reatisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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-] Basis of preparation and material accounting polices {continued)
2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)

s)  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the assets
recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or cash-generating units (CGU) fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down te its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Group's cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets
and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the
amount of any previous revaluation. Impairment losses are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata
basis.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount
of each CGU (or group of CGU) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

t) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash and bank balances,
deposits-and other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
original maturities up to three months from the date of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

u)  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.
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2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices (continued)
2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)
)  Provisions (continued)

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting expected future cash
flows using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold, or service provided to the customer.
Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is reviewed
annually. The Group provides normal warranty provisions for general repairs for two, five and ten years on all its
products sold, in line with industry practice. A liability for poiential warranty claims is recognised at the time the
product is sold. The Group does not provide any extended warranties or maintenance contracts to its customers.

v)  Employees end of service benefits
1- Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of financial position.

2-  Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a single employment benefit scheme of defined benefit plan driven by the Labour Law of Saudi
Arabia which is based on most recent salary and number of service years.

The post-employment benefits plans is not funded. Accordingly, valnations of the obligations under the plan are
carried out by an independent actuary based on the estimated unit method. The costs relating to such plans primarily
consist of the present value of the benefits attributed on an equal basis to each year of service and the interest on this
obligation in respect of employee service in previous years.

Current and past service costs related to post-employment benefits are recognized immediately in profit or loss while
unwinding of the liability at discount rates used are recorded in profit or loss. Any changes in net liability due to
actuarial valuations and changes in assumptions are taken as re-measurement in the other comprehensive income.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized directly to other comprehensive income and transferred to retained earnings in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity in the period in which they occur.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service costs. End of service payments are based on employees’ final
salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of service, as stated in the Labour Law of Saudi Arabia.

Employee benefits obligations are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepis voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: {a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37
and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value,

w)  Segment information
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it earns
revenue and incurs costs. The operating segments are used by the management of the Group to allocate resources

and assess performance. Operating segments exhibiting similar economic characteristics, product and services, class
of customers where appropriate are aggregated and reported as reportable segments.
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2 Basis of preparation and material accounting polices {continued)
2.2 Material accounting policies (continued)
x)  Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

y)  Operating profit

Operating profit is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue producing activities of the Group as
well as other income and expenses related to operating activities. Operating profit excludes net finance costs, share
of profit of investment in associate and income taxes.

z)  Non-current assets (or disposal group) held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal group) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, if any.

An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or
disposal group), but not more than any cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A gain or loss not
previously recognized by the date of the sale of the non-current asset {or disposal group) is recognized at the date of
derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortized while they
are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified
as held for sale continue to be recognized.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the condensed consolidated balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

A discontinued operations is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and
that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single coordinated
plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to use judgment in applying its
accounting policies and estimates and assumptions about the future. Estimates and other judgments are
continuously evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, including expectations about
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Although these estimates and judgments
are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from
those estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing an adjusiment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

a)  Provision for slow moving inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an
estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on
an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed
collectively and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or cbsolescence, based
on historical selling prices.

24



AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions {continued)
Use of estimates and judgements: {continued)

b}  Impairment of trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. Refer to note 27 for the sensitivity analysis.

¢)  Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted
cash flow {DCF) model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the
performance of the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for
the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These
estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group.

d)  Warranty

Provisions for warranty is recorded based on an estimate and the actual cost and timing of future cash flows are
dependent on future events. The difference between expectation and the actual future liability is accounted for in the
period when such determination is made.

e) Customer rebates

Accounting for the amount and timing of recognition of customer rebate require the exercise of judgement. The
rebate relates to the customers for achieving agreed purchase or sales targets within a set period. Where rebate span
different accounting periods, the amount recognised in each period is estimated based on the probability that the
customers will meet contractual target volumes based on historical and forecast performance.

P Employees’ benefits

The cost of end of service benefit plans and the present value of end of service henefit obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality
rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assnmptions are
reviewed at each reporting date. Refer to note 15 for the sensitivity analysis.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of corporate bonds in the
respective currency with at least AA rating, with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of
the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality, and those having excessive
credit spreads are removed from the population of bonds on which the discount rate is based on the basis that they
do not represent high quality bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for specific countries. There are no publicly available

mortality tables for the specific country. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future
inflation rates and the management outlook for the respective country.
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AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023

(All amonnts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)
441 Property and equipment {continued)

(@) Guarantee

As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Group had no pledged assets related to bank loans guarantee.

(b) Key estimates: estimate of usefid lives of properties and equipment

Note 2.2 shows the estimated useful lives of property and equipment, which vary according to their nature and usage
methods. The actual useful life may be shorter or longer, Management revises its estimates of these ngeful lives and

adjusts them as appropriate.

4.2 Leases

The Group leases real estate represented by warehouses and buildings. The duration of such lease contracts is
between 1 to 5 years and some of these contracts have the option to extend the lease period.

The following table shows the balance of the right-of-use leased assets and the related lease liabilities in the

consolidated statement of financial position:

Cost - Right-of-use assets

Building
Warchouses

Accumulated depreciation - Right-of-use assets

Building
Warehouses

Net carrying amount

Lease liabilities — current
Building
Warehouses

Lease liabilities - non-current
Building
Warehouses

The following table shows the movement during the year in lease lizbilities:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions during the year

Interest during the year (note 25 and note 32.2)

Payments during the year

Liabilities relating to disposal group — Sale of New Vision Company (note
32.2)

Balance at end of the year
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December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
24,333 24,333
20,306 20,306
44,639 44,639
8,961 4,113
18,126 16,455
27,087 20,568
17,552 24,071
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
4,321 4,536
919 1,534
5:240 6,070
11,087 15,420
142 933
11,229 16,353
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
22,423 7,007
- 22,976
719 556

(6,673) (6,701)
2 {1,415)
16,469 22,423
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4.2 Leases {continued)

The following table shows the movement during the year in the right-of-use assets:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Cost

Balance at beginning of year 44,993 28,952
Additions for the year - 22,076
Disposals in the year (5,454) -
Assets relating to disposal group - Sale of New Vision Company (note 32.2) - (6,935)
39,539 _ 44,993

Accumulated depreciation
Balance, at beginning of year 20,922 20,473
Depreciation charge for the year 6,519 5,761
Disposals in the year (5.454) .
Assets relating to disposal group — Sale of New Vision Company (note 32.2) - (5,312)
21,987 20,022
Net book value 17,552 24,071

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating to leases:

2023 2022
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 6,519 5,761
Interest expense (included in finance charges) 719 556
Expense relating to short-term leases 3,257 3,232
Total 10,495 9,549

Total cash outflow for the year ended December 31, 2023, amounted to SR 6,673 (SR 6,701 for the year ended
December 31, 2022).

The following table shows the depreciation charge of the right-of-use leased assets in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022

Depreciation charge for the year
Building 4,847 4,054
Warehouses 1,671 1,707
6,518 5,761

Key estimates: estimate of incremental borrowing rate, lease term

The application of IFRS 16 requires management to exercise certain judgments, such as determining the incremental
borrowing rate, which is one of the main inputs to the calculation of the right to use assets, therefore, management
contacted some of its banks to provide them with commission rates on loans with similar values for lease contracts
subject to the requirements of this accounting standard and for periods of time approximate to these contracts as
well. In the opinion of management, the interest rate quotations submitted by the banks take into account the credit
rating of the Group and the risks of the sector in which the Group operates, and therefore no adjustment has been
made to the rates of these bank commissions.

If the incremental borrowing rate changes by 1%, this will cause an increase (decrease) in the right -of- use assets by
SR 420 and SR {420) respectively {2022: SR 400 and SR {400) respectively). With regard to the judgments related
to determining the lease term, most of the lease contracts are fixed term. In the event that an extension option is
available, management relies on historical experience and other factors, including facts and circnmstances that create
an economic incentive to exercise the extension option or not exercise a termination option.

Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated).

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to

exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.
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5 Intangible assets
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
Goodwill (Notes 5.1 & 5.2)
ASDAA Gulf Trading Company (ASDAA) _ 9,854 9,854
9,854 9,854

Effective November 12, 2014, HGISC acquired effectively 100% shareholding in ASDAA for a purchase consideration
of SR 20 million, which was in excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired by SR 9.9 million and has been
recorded as goodwill.

5.1 reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets is as follows:
Intangible

assets Goodwill Total
Cost
As at January 1, 2022 5.574 9,854 15,428
Additions - - -
Disposal of intangible assets (3,829) - (3,829)
Assets relating to disposal group — Sale of New Vision
Company (note 32.2) (1,745) - (1,745)
As at December 31, 2022 - 9,854 9,854
Additions
Disposal of intangible assets - - -
As at December 31, 2023 - 9,854 9,854
Accumulated amortization:
As at January 1, 2022 3,418 - 3,418
Charge for the year 174 - 174
Disposal of intangible asset (2,589) - (2,589)
Assets relating to disposal group — Sale of New Vision
Company {note 32.2) . (1,0013) = (1,003)
As at December 31, 2022 . - :
Charge for the year - -
Disposal of intangible asset - -
As at December 31, 2023 - -
Net carrying amount:
As at December 31, 2023 - 9,854 9,854
As at December 31, 2022 - 9,854 9,854

5.2 Goodwill - ASDAA Gulf Trading Company:
The recoverable amount of this CGU is estimated using discounted cash flows.
The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below. The values assigned to the

key assumptions represent management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been based
on historical data from both external and internal sources.

2023 2022
Discount rate 17.4% 12.0%
Terminal value growth rate 2.9% 3.0%
Budgeted EBITDA growth rate (average of next five years) 2.0% 5%
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5 Intangible assets (continued)

5.2 Goodwill - ASDAA Gulf Trading Company: (continued)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
CGU CGU
Recoverable Recoverable
amount amount
Particulars “In Millions” % Change “In Millions” % Change
+1% Discount rate 122 (4%) 52 (10%}
-1% Discount rate 133 5% 62 7%
+1% Terminal value growth rate 131 3% 61 5%
-1% Terminal value growth rate 124 (2%) 53 (9%)
+1% Budgeted EBITDA growth rate 128 1% 62 7%
-1% Budgeted EBITDA growth rate 126 (1%) 51 (12%)

The discount rate was a pre-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average weighted average cost of
capital.

The cash flow projections included specific estimates for five years and a terminal growth rate thereafter.
None of the above changes would result in an impairment on the CGU level including the recorded goodwill.

The terminal growth rate was determined based on management's estimate of the long-term compound annual
EBITDA growth rate, consistent with the assumptions that a market participant would make.

Budgeted EBITDA was estimated taking into account past experience. Revenue growth was projected taking into
account the average growth levels experienced over the past five years and the estimated sales volume and price
growth for the next five years. It was assumed that the sales price would increase in line with forecast inflation over
the next five years.

The estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying value by SR 114 million (2022: SR 52 million).

6 Trade and other receivables

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022

Trade receivables 372,804 354,663
Less: Impairment losses on trade receivables s (a5.361) (&0,117)

337,443 294,546

Other receivables;

Advertisement claims from suppliers 18,587 10,139

Customs duties deposit 5,956 5,956
Impairment losses on other receivables (5.056] ___[5.956)

356,030 304685

Reconciliation of impairment losses on trade receivables is as follow:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year 60,117 113,433
Charge for the year 1,440 10,660
Charge for the year- discontinued operations (note 32) - 423
Write-offs during the year (26,196) (23,679)
Assets of disposal group — sale of EMS = (5,226)
Assets relating to disposal group — Sale of New Vision Company - (35.494)
Balance at end of year (Note 27) 25,361 60,117
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7 Investment in associates

The details of the Group’s investment in associate is as follows:

Country of
Name of Company Principal activities incorporation Effective interest at
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
LG Shaker Company Manufacture of air
Limited (“LG Shaker™) conditioners Saudi Arabia 49% 49%
Ajeek Maintenance Service Consumer electronics
Company Limited ("Ajeek”™  repair Saudi Arabia 49% -
Investments in associates is as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
LG Shaker (Note 7.1) 465,534 466,174
Ajeek 1,425 -
466,959 466,174
Reconciliations for the investment in associates are as follows:
LG Shaker Ajeek Total
At January 1, 2023 466,174 - 466,174
Additions - 1,425 1,425
Share of profit for the year 36,110 - 36,110
Dividends (36,750) - (36,750)
At December 31, 2023 465,534 1,425 466,959
At January1, 2022 442,395 - 442,395
Share of profit for the year 23,779 - 23,779
At December 31, 2022 466,174 - 466,174

During the year, dividends of SR 36.75 million was received by the Group on December 18, 2023 (2022: no dividends

have heen received from the associate during the year).

714 LG Shaker

LG Shaker is a mixed limited liability company registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under the commercial
registration number 1010226606 Dated 4 Dhul Hijah 1427H (corresponding to December 25, 2006). The principal
activity of the company is to manufacture various types of air conditioners.

The following table summarizes the financial information of this material associate - LG Shaker as included in its
own financial statements. The table also reconciles the summarized financial information to the carrying amount of

the Group's interest in the associate.

Balance as at December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Non-current assets 107,645 102,914
Current assets 369,636 346,820
Non- current liabilities (11,582) {9,879)
Current liahilities (116,672) {104,565)
Net assets (100%) 349,027 335,290
Group's share of net assets (49%) 153,550 154,190
Goodwill 311,984 311,984
Carrying amount of interest in associate 465,534 466,174
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7 Investment in an associate {continued)

7.1 LG Shaker (continued)

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Revenue 612,029 541,757
Total comprehensive income (100%) (*) 88,738 57,292
Group share of the total comprehensive income (49%) (*) 36,110 23,779

{+) The difference between the Group’s share in net assets of the associate and share of total comprehensive income

and 49% of associate reported net assets and total comprehensive income pertains to the adjustment made for
the elimination of unrealised profit on upstream transactions between the Group and its associate.

The recoverable amount of this equity-accounted investee is estimated using discounted cash flows. The fair value
measurement was categorized as a level 3 fair value based on the inputs in the valuation technique used.

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below. The values assigned to the
key assumptions represent management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been based
on historical data from both external and internal sources.

2023 2022
Discount rate 13.50% 12.00%
Terminal value growth rate 2.90% 3.00%
Budgeted EBITDA growth rate (average of next five years) 3.20% 14%
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Investment Investiment
Recoverable Recoverable
amount amount
Particulars “In Millions” % Change “In Millions” % Change
+1% Discount rate 528 (89%) 596 {10%)
-1% Discount rate 636 10% 752 13%
+1% Terminal value growth rate 617 7% 728 9%
-1% Terminal value growth rate 543 (6%) 616 (8%)
+1% Budgeted EBITDA growth rate 584 1% 676 1%
-1% Budgeted EBITDA growth rate 560 {1%) 656 (1%)

The management of the Group has assessed in detail the carrying value of LG Shaker as at December 31, 2023. Thege
were based on certain detailed assumptions and management plans. Management expects these plans to continue to
support the carrying value of the investee, although this will be dependent on the success of the plans and the
continued improvement in the wider economic conditions in Saudi Arabia. Management will continue to monitor the
detailed assumptions against these plans in their future impairment reviews.

8 Inventories

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Finished goods 337,911 413,226
Spare parts 31,980 43,085
Goods in transit 34,064 6,894
404,864 463,205

Impairment losses on inventories (30,886) {48,856)
373,978 414,349
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8 Inventories (continued)

Reconciliation of the impairment losses on inventories is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year 48,856 46,572
Charge for the year (note 21) 4,473 7,594
Utilized during the year (22,443) {4,140}
Asgets relating to disposal group — Sale of New Vision Company = {1,170)
Balance at end of year 30,886 48,856

a) At December 31, 2023, the Group has outstanding bank guarantees of SR 87.2 million (December 31, 2022:
SR 31.9 million) issued by local and foreign banks in respect of import of finished goods and other supplies.
Seenote 33

b) At December 31, 2023, the Group has outstanding bank letter of credits of SR 81.7 million {(December 31, 2022:
SR 68.0 million) issued against import of finished goods and other supplies. See note 33

9 Prepayments and cther debt balances
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Advances

Advances to suppliers 33,621 27,018

Other advances 29,257 16,744
Advances to employees 3,876 3,782

Total advances 66,754 47,544

Prepaid expenses 14,336 15,535

Cash margin 5:547 -

Others 1,666 -

88,303 63,079

10 Cash and cash equivalent
December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Cash in hand 700 g61
Bank balances - current aceounts 18,053 51,524
Bank balances — deposits (*) - 20.226
Total 18,843 72,711

% These bank balances which represents term deposits have maturities of 1 to 3 months, and interest rates ranging
between 3% and 4.8%.

11 Share capital
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Authorized share capital (shares of SR 10 each} 482,334 482,334
Issued and fully paid-up capital (shares of SR 10 each) 482,334 482,134

As at December 31, 2023, the authorized, issued, and paid-up share capital of the Company is SR 482.3 million divided
on 48.2 million shares of SR 10 each. As at December 31, 2022, the authorized, issued, and paid-up share capital of the
Company is SR 482.3 million divided on 48.2 million shares of SR 10 each.

12 Reserves

The Ordinary General Assembly may decide to form reserves to the extent that it is in the interest of the Company or
ensures the distribution of fixed dividends, to the extent possible, to the shareholders.

33



AL HASSAN GHAZI IBRAHIM SHAKER COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Notes te the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
(All amounts in thousands of Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

13 Non-controlling interest
May 16, 2023 NVEEAC**
NCI percentage 40%
Non- current assets 15,840
Current assets 66,795
Non- current liabilities .
Current liabilities 35,586
Net assets 47,049
Net assets attributable to NCI 18,901
Revenue 39,782
Total comprehensive income 2,147
Profit allocated to NCI 859
Cash flows used in operating activities (805)
Cash flows used in investing activities (1,320)
Cash flows used in financing activities (135)
Net decrease in cagh and cash equivalents (2.260)

Intra group

December 31, 2022 NVEEAC EMS* Adjustments Total
NCI percentage 40% - -
Non- current assets 27,024 . . 27.024
Current assets 54,811 - - 54,811
Non- current liabilities 542 - - 542
Current liabilities 37,201 - - 37,291
Net assets 44,902 - - 44,902
Net assets attributable to NCI 18,042 . - 18,042
Revenue 89,335 1,087 - 90,422
Profit / (loss) 5,346 (3,310) . 2,036
OCI ) - 46 - 46
Total comprehensive income / (loss) 5,346 (3,264) - 2, 083
Profit / (loss) allocated to NCI 2,138 (861) - 1,277
OCI allocated to NCI . 12 - 12
Cash flows generated from / (used in) operating
activities 8,604 (1,532) - 7,162
Cash flows used in investing activities (1,157) - (1,157)
Cash flows used in financing activities (8,717} — {87
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents [1,180) [1,532] . (2.n2)

*  EMS information is for the period from January 1, 2022 till November 2, 2022 (date of sale),
** NVEEAC information is for the period from January 1, 2023, till May 16, 2023 (date of sale).

14 Loans and borrowings

The Group has credit facility agreements with local and foreign commercial banks for long and short-term borrowings
in Saudi Riyal and US Dollar. Such facilities were obtained principally under Murabaha/Tawarruq arrangements.
Certain facility agreements are secured against promissory notes, corporate guarantees of the Group are provided
wherever required for loans to subsidiaries. The facilities bear financial charges on prevailing market rates. The
agreements contain certain covenants, which among other things, requires certain financial ratios to be maintained.
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14 Loans and borrowings (continued)
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Current:
Lease Liability (note 4.2) 5,240 6,070
Bank loans i 397,126 _ Ba4q.205
402,366 550,275
Non- current:
Lease Liability (note 4.2) 11,229 16,353
Bank loans - =
11,229 16,353

Secured liabilities and assets pledged as security

All bank loans are secured by promissory notes signed by the Parent Company equal to the maximum facility amount.
Promissory notes amounted to SR 1,825 million as at December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022: SR 1,065 million).

As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Group had no pledged assets related to bank loans guarantee.
Compliance with loan covenants

Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Group is required to commit to certain levels for the following financial
covenants:

1-  Financial leverage ratio,

2-  Current ratio,

3-  Gearing ratio {Debt to equity not to exceed 1.5:1).
4~  Ratio of total liahilities and tangible net worth.
The following bank loans are outstanding as at:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Nominal YearTotal facility  CarryingTotal facility Carrying
Currency interestrate  of maturity armonml Amount amount amount
Kingdom of SIBOR+ 1.25% -
Saudi Arabia SR 2.5% per annum 2023 1,825,000 397,126 1,102,900 544,205
LIBOR + 3.8%
Jordan UsDh per annum 2023 - - 35625 5,874
Liabilities related to
assets (note 32) - (35.625) _ (5874)
397,126 544,205

Reconciliation of bank loans are as follows:

2023 2022
Balance as at 1 January 544,205 480,000
Proceeds
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia | 2,079,566 1,898,580 |
Jordan I - 62,901 |
2,079,506 1,961,481
Repayments
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (2,226,645) (1,829,587)
Jordan = {61,905)
{2,226,645) (1,891,492)
Liabilities related to assets held for sale (note 32} = (5.874)
Balance as at 31 December 397,126 Sl 205
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14 Loans and borrowings (continued)

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing;

Balance as January 1, 2023
Non-cash transactions

Finance expenses

Additions of lease liabilities

Net non-cash flow transaction
Cash flow transaction

Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Payments of loans and borrowings
Payments of finance cost

Lease payments

Change in cash and cash equivalents
Net cash flow

Balance as December 31, 2023

Balance as January 1, 2022
Non-cash tr chi
Finance expenses

Additions of lease liabilities

Liabilities relating to disposal group — Sale of

New Vision Company (note 32.2)

Assets relating to disposal group — Sale of New

Vision Company (note 32.2)

Net non-cash flow transaction
Cash flow transaction

Proceeds from loans and horrowings
Payments of loans and borrowings
Payments of finance cost

Lease payments

Change in cash and cash equivalents
Net cash flow

Balance as December 31, 2022

15 Employees’ benefits obligation

Net defined benefit liability

Cash and
cash Lease
equivalents Loans  Liabilities Total
72,711 544,203 22,423 639,339
= 45,542 719 46,261
72,711 589,747 23,142 685.600
- 2,079,566 2,079,566
- {(2,226,645) (2,226,6435)
. (45,542) - (45,542)
= = (6s673) (69673)
___(53,868) . (53,868)
(53,868) (192,621) (6,673)  (253,162)
18,843 397,126 16.460 4%2.438
Cash and
cash Lease

equivalents Loans Liabilities Total
53,020 480,090 7,007 540,117
= 22,379 556 22,935
= = 22,976 22,976
- (5,874) {1,415) (7,289)
(7,980) . . (7.980)
45,040 496,595 20,124 570,759

- 1,961,481 - 1,961,481

. (1,891,492) = (1,891,492)

: (22,379) - (22,379}

. . (6,701) (6,701}
27,671 r . ' 27,671
_aziby 47610 (6,700} GE, 580
72,711 544,205 22,423 639,339
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
24,430 20,808

The Group operates an approved unfunded employees’ end of service benefits plan ("EOSB”) for its employees as

required by the local Labor Law.

In Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA}, the plan entitles an employee who complete over two but less than five years of
service, to receive a payment equal to one-third of their last month half salary for each completed year of service.
Similarly, the employees who complete up to five years to receive a payment equal to 50% of their last monthly salary
for each completed year of service and over five but less than ten years of service, to receive a payment equal to two-
thirds of their last monthly salary for each completed year of service. Further, the employees who complete over ten
years of service, to receive a payment equal to their last monthly salary for each completed year of service.
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15 Employees’ benefits obligation (continued)

Reconciliation in employees’ benefits obligation is as follows:

Balance at beginning of year

Included in profit and loss
Continued operations
Current service cost

Interest cost

Discontinued operations
Current service cost
Interest cost

Included in other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss / (gain)
Benefit paid

Liahilities of disposal group — sale of EMS (note 32.1)

Balance at end of year

Represented by:

Net defined benefit liability for plans in:

- Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Actuarial assumptions

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
20,808 22,527
2,362 2,166
884 487
3,246 2,623
= 75
. 47
122
1,901 1,576
(1,525) (2,320}
. (3,720)
24,430 20,808
24,430 20,808
24,430 20,808

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions applied at December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022:

Discount rate
Salary increase
Average years of past service

Sensitivity analysis

Particulars

EOSB liability

+ 1% Discount rate

- 1% Discount tate

+ 1% Salary increase rate

-1% Salary increase rate

1 Year mortality age set back

1 Year mortality age set forward

December 31, 2023

PVDBO

24,430
(1,163)
1,286
1,309
(1,209)
3

3
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December 321, 2023

December 21, 2022

KSA

4.75% p.a.
2.00 % p. a.
6.90 years

KSA

4.25% p.a.
2.00%p.a.
7.80 vears

December 31, 2022

% Change

(4.76%)
5.53%
5.00%

{4.68%)

{0.01%)
0.01%

PVDBO

20,808
(769)

837

848
(793)
(1)

1

% Change

(3.69%)
4.18%
3.02%

(3.66%)

(0.01%)
0.01%
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15 Employees’ benefits obligation (continued)

Sensitivity analysis {continued)

PVDBO: Present value of defined benefit obligations

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and benefits
Social security contributions

Expenses related to post - employment defined benefit plans

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
91,848 77,761
2,341 2,331
3,253 2,625
07,448 Bz 7y

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6.8 years (December 31, 2022: 5.75 years). The

expected maturity analysis is as follows:

Less than

one year

December 31, 2023 5,268
December 31, 2022 5,874

16 Trade and other payables

Trade payables due to related parties (note 28)
Trade payables - third party
Total trade payables

Accrued expenses

Employee benefits

Contract liabilities-advance from customers
Accrued cost for vendors

Refund Liabilities

Other payables

Total other payables

Total trade and other payables

17 Zakat liabilities

a) Zakat provision

Movement of the Company's Zakat provision for the year ended 31 December comprise of the following:

Balance, beginning of the year
Current year expense
Payments during the year
Balance, end of the year

38

1—2 2-5 Over 5
years years years Total
3,125 7,761 16,401 32,555
3.223 6,996 8,677 24,770
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
164,308 199,280
34.134 35,520
198 442 234,800
16,461 7,881
15,340 9,493
32,082 17,004
5,131 6,154
2,201 -
63,015 37,009
= 135,130 77,031
333.572 312,431
2023 2022
10,574 6,343
8,450 10,954
(12,482) (6,723)
6,542 10,574
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17 Zakat and other foreign income tax liabilities {continued)
b) Status of assessments

Zakat

The Group submitted its zakat returns for the years up to 2022 to the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA).
Moreover, the Group’s zakat returns for the years 2015 to 2018 were finalized and the related liabilities were paid
during the prior year. The assessment related to the financial year of 2014 was finalized and the related liabilities of
SR 274 thousands were paid during the year. The assessments related to 2019 and 2020 financial years have been
finalized and the related liabilities of SR 6.8 million were paid during the year. The Group’s management and its
zakat advisor believe that the current level of zakat provision is sufficient and adequate.

18 Warranty provision

A provision is recognized for expected warranty claims on products sold for which the Group is liable to cover
warranty. It is expected all these costs will be incurred within two to ten years after the reporting date. Assumptions
used to calculate the provision for warranties are based on product sales, date of sale, warranty period, and estimated
level of repairs and warranty costs. The estimate has been made based on historical warranty trend.

The movement in provisions is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
Balance, beginning of the year 14,189 12,159
Charge for the year 2,772 6,083
Utilized during the year (4,004) (4,053)
Balance, end of the year 12,957 14,189

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount recognized is the present
value of the estimated expenditures.

Provisions for warranty are recognized at the date of sale of the products covered by the warranty and are calculated
based on historical data for similar products. warranty is normally granted for 2 to 10 years after the sale. Warranty
provision is recognized to cover the cost of repair of defective products.

Provision related to warranties created as per Group's policy for the purpose of repair or replacements of defected
goods.
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19 Operating segments

For management purposes, the Group is organized into three main business segments based on internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker:

Heating, ventilation, and air-conditioning solutions (HVAC): Represenis residential and commercially conditioners
including chillers and related services.

Home appliances: Represents televisions, washing machines, dryers, refrigerators, irons, gas cookers, and floor care.
All other segments represent consuitancy services for energy solutions and sale mobile phones.

The Executive Management Committee monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessments.

CoDM uses segments Profit Before Tax (PBT) to measure performance being the most relevant in evaluating the
results of segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on mutually agreed terms in a manner similar to transactions with
third parties.

Segment information provided to the board of directors:

The table below shows the segment information provided to the board of directors for the reportable segments for
the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and also the basis on which revenue is recognised:

Total

For the vear ended HVAC Home reportable

December 31, 2023 Solutions Appliances segments Others Total
Revenues from

external customers 200,676 436.487 1,236,163 74 1,236,237
Cost of sales __(568,957)  (349,517)  (918,474) - (918,474)
Gross profit 230,719 86,970 317,689 74 317,763
General and

administrative expenses (67,349) (28,222)  (95.57D) . (95,571)
Selling and

distribution expenses (90,052) (43,609) (133,661) (131) (133,702)
Impairment logs on

trade and other receivables (1,440) - (1,440) . (1,440)
Other income 2,180 1 2,191 . 2,101
Income from operations } 74,058 15,150 89,208 (57) 89,151
Finance costs (52,111) 628 (51,483) . (51,483}
Other expenses —

Foreign exchange loss (648) 154 (4904) . 494)
Share of Prefit from

an associate 36,110 . Ao - 36,110
Segments profit before zakat and

foreign income tax 57,409 15,932 73,341 (57) 73,284
Zakat and foreign income tax {(6,436) (2,014) (8,9450) - (8,450)
Net income for the year from

continuing operations 50,973 13,918 64,891 57 64,834
Discontinued operations
Gain from diseontinued operations 1,452 - 1,452 - 1,452
Net income for the year 52,425 13,918 66,343 (57) 66,286
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49 Segment reporting (continued)
Total
For the year ended HVAC Home reportable
December 31, 2022 Solutions Appliances segments Others Total
Revenues from external customers 677,072 360,154 1,037,226 - 1,037,226
Cost of sales (515,769) (283,814) (790.583) - (799.583)
Gross profit 161,303 76,340 237,643 . 237,643
General and administrative expenses {57,498) (23,112) (80,610) (80,610)
Selling and distribution expenses (74,031) (34,032} (108,063} (108,063)
Impairment loss on
trade and other receivables (8,910) {1,750) {10,660) - (10,660)
Other income 3,958 89 4,047 . 4,047
Income from operations 24,822 17,535 42,357 42,357
Finance costs (21,644) (s50) (22,194) - (22,194)
Other expenses — Poreign exchange loss (2,810) 822 {1,088) - {1,988}
Share of Profit from an associate 23,779 23,770 - 23,779
Segments profit before zakat and
foreign income tax 24,147 17,807 41,954 - 41,954
Zakat and foreign income tax (6,105) (4,849 (10,954) i (10,954)
Net income for the year from
continuing operations 18,042 12,958 31,000 - 31,000
Discontinued operations
Gain from discontinued operations 3,109 . 3,100 - 3,100
Net income for the year 21,151 12,058 .00 34,109
Adjustmen
is
Total and
HVAC Home  reportable eliminatio
2023 solutions appliances segments Others ns Total
Reportable segment assets 1,658,150 820,174 2,478.324 4,153 (973.652) 1,508,825
Additions to properties and equipment 2,165 39 2,204 - - 2,204
Others Adjustmen
ts
Total and
HVAC Home reportable eliminatio
2022 solutions Appliances segments ns Total
Reportable segment assets 1,586,482 632,430 2,218,012 (602,047) 1,615,965
Additions to properties and equipment 1,542 147 1,689 - 1,680
Others Adjustmen
ts
Total and
HVAC Home reportable eliminatio
2023 Solutions Appliances segments ns Total
Total segment liabilities 909,004 505,267 1,415,261 4,110 (628,275) 791,006
Others Adjustmen
ts
Total and
HVAC Home reportable eliminatio
2022 Solutions Appliances segments ns Total
Total segment liabilities 893,930 203,212 1,187,142 - (243.422) 943,720

Adjustments and eliminations represent intercompany transactions and consolidation elimination entries
transactions, and the intercompany transactions are mainly related to financing transactions.

The non-current assets are geographically located in KSA by 100 % as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022.
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20 Revenue

The Group’s revenue is derived from contracts with customers for sale of goods and rendering of services.

Revenues from sale of goods are satisfied at a point in time when the products are sold to and accepted by customers.
Service revenues are recognized overtime.

HVAC Home Al other
For the year ended December 31, 2023 Solutions appliances segments Total
Revenue From sales of goods
Saudi Arabia 780,050 436,487 74 1,216,611
Revenue From rendering services
Saudi Arabia 19,626 - = 19,626
Total 799,676 436.487 74 1,236,237
HVAC Home All other
For the year ended December 31, 2022 Solutions appliances Segments Total
Revenue From sales of goods
Saudi Arabia 663,584 360,154 - 1,023,738
Revenue From rendering services
Saudi Arabia 13,488 . 13.488
Total 677,072 360,154 : 1,037,226
21 Cost of sales
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Material cost 899,352 761,231
Installation cost 10,596 5,326
Impairment losses on inventories (note 8) 4,473 7,594
Others 4,053 = 25432
918,474 799,583
22 Other income

Other income for the year ended 31 December comprise the following:
December 31, December 31,

Sy S

Rental income 1,960 2,868
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 221 855
Others 10 334
2,191 4,047

23 Selling and distribution expenses
Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December comprise the following:

December 31, December 31,

2023 a3

Employee costs 57,100 50,661
Sales commission 21,537 10,284
Dealer promotional incentives 17,831 15,402
Publicity and advertising 15,114 10,307
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6,495 4,692
Transportation 5,418 4,892
Warranty expenses 2,772 4,300
Rent 2,066 1,505
Printing and stationery 911 1,122
Repairs and maintenance 547 555
Materials and installations 369 185
Utilities 120 411
Insurance 39 111
Others 3,464 3.0556
133,792 108,063
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24 General and Administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December comprise the following:

Employee costs

Travel

Professional fees
Repairs and maintenance
External Labor
Depreciation (note 4.1}
Utilities

Insurance
Communication
Printing and stationery
Rent

Entertainment

Others

25 Finance cost

Finance costs, net for the year ended 31 December comprise the following:

Finance charges
Bank charges
Interest on lease liabilities (note 4.2)

26 Basic and diluted earnings per share

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
40,332 32,055
13,016 8,120
10,482 10,494
7,267 4,912
6,075 6,542
5,013 5,902
1,982 1,448
1,068 1,768
1,504 2,024
1,305 735
1,191 1,727
141 116
4,395 4,767
95,571 80.610
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
45,542 15,622
5,222 6,118
719 454
51,483 22,104

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the earnings for the year ended
attributable to owners of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,

as follows:

Earnings attributable to owners of the Parent Company
From continuing operations

From discontinued operations

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
Basic and diluted earnings per share

From continuing operations attributable to the

owners of the Parent Company

From discontinued operations attributable to the

owners of the Parent Company

Total basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
the owners of the Parent Company
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December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

64,834 31,001

593 1,831

65,427 32,832
48,233 48,233

1.35 0.64

0.01 0.04

1.36 0.68
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27 Financial instruments — fair values
This note provides information about the Group’s financial instruments, including:

e  An overview of all financial instruments held by the Group;
s  Specific information about each type of financial instruments.

Financial assets

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), or fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The decision to classify these financial assets into appropriate categories
depends on:

e  The business model for managing the financial assets; and
s the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All financial assets owned by the Group are measured at amortized cost, with the fair values being not materially
different from their carrying amounts due to their short-term nature.

Financial liabilities

The fair values of financial liabilities are not materially different from their carrying amounts, since the interest
payable on those liabilities is either close to current market rates or the labilities are of a short-term nature.

Financial instruments — risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

e  Credit risk;
e  Market risk; and
e Liquidity risk.

Risk management framework

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Group’s risk management policies.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate tisk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’s Audit Committee monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The
Company’s Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular
and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are provided to the Audit
Committee.

Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the Company’s Audit Committee.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk as a result of the counterparty’s failure to meet its contractual obligations when
due, in respect of:

e Tradereceivables
¢ Cash at banks

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristic and geographic
location and existence of previous financial difficulties.
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a7 Financial instruments — fair values (continued)
Credit risk {continued)

The Group is closely monitoring the economic environment in taking actions to limit its exposure to customers in
countries experiencing particular economic volatility. Purchase limits are monitored, particularly for customers
operating in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, because the Group's experience is that the recent economie volatility has had
a greaker impact for customers than for customers in other countries.

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a financial loss as a result of the failure of the customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument to fulfil its contractual obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the
maximum credit exposure, Impairment losses on financial assets recognized in consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income amounted to SR 1.4 million (2022: SR 11.1 million).

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customers base, including the default
risk of the industry and the country in which customers operate. Further, details of concentration of revenue are
included in note 19.

For receivables, the Group has set a credit policy according to which each new customer is individually analysed
according to the financial solvency before presenting the Group's standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions, and it includes reviewing the financial statements, information about the business and in some cases
bank references. credit limits are set for each customer and are reviewed periodically, The Group limits its exposure
to credit risk by providing credit terms that usually do not exceed three months on average.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or a legal entity, their geographic location, industry, and existence of previous financial
difficulties.

As at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 the exposure to credit risks for receivables was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Gross carrying amount 2023 2022
Trade receivables {note 6) 372,804 354,663
Cash and cash equivalenis (Bank balances and deposits) (note 10) 18,053 71,750
Total 390,857 426,413

*  For trade receivables, the Group grouped the customers who can buy on credit by geographic region, the
maximum exposure to the eredit risk for total current and non-current trade receivables by geographic region

are as follows:
For the vear ended 31 December
2023 2022
KSA 372,804 304,685
372,804 304,685

The Group applies the IFRS g simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables.

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is determined to be predictive
of the risk of loss (including but not limited to audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow
projections) and applying experienced credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and
quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of loss such as general economic and/or market conditions, client
financial performance and profitability, cash flow or liquidity issues, payment delays and past due information and
management experience.

These rates are multiplied by scalar factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions such as
oil prices over the expected lives of the receivables. The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade
receivables from individual customers that represent a large number of low value balances. The expected loss rates
are hased on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months.
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27 Financial instruments — fair values (continued)

Credit risk {continued)

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables based on
geographical area as at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022:

December 31, 2023

K8A

December 31, 2022

KSA

Gross carrying Weighted Loss allowance
amount average loss (%)
372,804 35,361 __9.5%
a72.804 25.361 9.5%

Gross carrying Weighted Loss allowance
amount average loss (%)

254,663 60,117 17.0%
354,663 60.117 _17.0%_

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for all trade receivables as at

December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022;

202

1-g0 days
91-180 days
181-270 days
271-360 days

More than 360 days

2022

1-90 days
91-180 days
181-270 days
271-360 days

More than 360 days

Factors impacting ECL model:

1- Trade receivables collections;

Gross carrying Weighted Lossallowance
amount average loss (%)
219,766 9,433 4.3%

97,685 2,425 2.5%

27,711 942 3.4%

3,507 319 9.1%
24,136 22,242 _92.2%
372,804 35,361 9.5%

Gross carrying Weighted Lossallowance

amount average loss (%)
174,131 5:779 3.3%
92,201 2,709 3.0%
25,864 1,298 5.0%
4,414 575 13.0%
58,053 49,666 __ 85.6%
354,663 60.117 17.0%

2-  Forward-looking information included in ECL model is the GDP which is correlated to the Group’s trade

receivables,

Sensitivi

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the impairment of trade receivables to reasonably possible
changes in GDP with all other variables held constant:

Increase by 100 basis points
Decrease by 100 basis points
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27 Financial instruments — fair values {continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Sensitivity (continued

The Group has assessed other receivables as underperforming receivables and as the expected lifetime of related
financial assets for less than 12 months the Group has applied the expected loss measurement over the life of the
assets. The expected losses of other receivables as at December 31, 2023 are SR 5,956 (2022: SR 5,956).

Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Group has kept cash and cash equivalents in reputable banks and financial institutions, so the expected credit
losses of cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2023 is insignificant (December 31, 2022: insignificant). The
cash balance as at December 31, 2023 is SR 18.8 million {December 31, 2022: SR 72,7 million).

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s treasury department in
accordance with the Group’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and
within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and
therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The credit risk on bank balances is low considering the Group has outstanding loans balances and credit facilities
with the various banks, in Saudi Arabia, with good credit ratings (in the range of A+ to BBB+) as aligned from external
credit rating companies such as Moody’s and Fitch, so concentration risk is also low.

Market risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates, commission rates and goods prices, will affect the Group 's income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency risks

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group's transactions are principally in Saudi Riyals. However, the Group has investments in foreign
subsidiaries, whose net assets are exposed to currency translation risk. Currently, such exposures are mainly related
to exchange rate movements between local currencies against Jordanian Dinar. The Group's management monitors
such fluctuations and manages its effect on the consolidated financial staterents accordingly. However management
believe that the effect of currency translation is insignificant for these subsidiaries as exchange currencies are
regularly fixed to Saudi Riyal.

Generally, borrowings are denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by the underlying
operations of the Group - primarily Saudi Arabian Riyal, but also US Dollar and Jordanian Dinar. In addition, interest
on borrowings is denominated in the currency of the borrowing. This provides an economic hedge without derivatives
being entered into and therefore hedge accounting is not applied in these circumstances. Currency risk regarding
purchase in Euro is immaterial.
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27 Financial instruments — fair values (continued)
Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the exposure to risks associated with the effect of fluctuations in the prevailing profit rates on the
Group's financial position and cash flows. Islamic banking facilities (Murabaha) and other banking facilities
amounting to SR 397 million as at December 31, 2023 (2022: SR 544 million) carry fee of variable profit financing
according to prevailing market rates. The Group’s management monitors the fluctuations in commission rates on an
ongoing basis.

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest -bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of
the Group is as follows.

2023 2022

Financial liabilities:
Variable rate instruments 397,126 544.205
297,126 544,205

Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible change of 1% interest rates at the reporting date would have increased {decreased) equity
and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency exchange rates remain constant.

Profit or loss Equity net of tax
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
31-December-2zo23
Variable rate instruments 3,971 (3,971) 2971 (2.971)
31-December-2022
Variable rate instruments 5,442 (5.442) 5.442 {5.442)
Price risk

The Group is not exposed to price risk as it does not have financial instruments sensitive to market prices.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Group's approach to managing
liquidity by monitering on a regular basis that sufficient funds and banking and other credit facilities are available to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.
The Group seeks continuously to comply with its legal obligations, including any, relating to its financing agreements.

Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on a regular basis that sufficient funds and banking and other credit facilities
are available to meet the Group’s future commitments.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities
amounting to SR 1,427.¢ million (December 31, 2022: SR 520.8) (See note 14) and cash and cash equivalents
amounting to SR 18.8 million as at December 31, 2023 {December 31, 2022: SR 72.7) (See note 10) on the basis of
expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at a Group level. In addition, the Group’s liquidity management
policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet
these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and
maintaining debt financing plans.

The associate has outstanding credit facility guaranteed by the Company in proportion to its share. As of December
31, 2023 and 2022, no loans were drawn by the associate under the facility agreement.
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27 Financial instruments — fair values (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period. Amounts

are shown in total and not discounted:

Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities as at December 31, 2023

Trade payables due to related parties
Trade payables - third party

Loans

Lease liabilities

Total

Conftractaal maturities of financial
liahilities as at December 31, 2022

Trade payables due to related parties
Trade payables - third party

Loans

Lease liabilities

Total

The following table summarize the assets and liabilities expected recovery/settlement period:

Assets

Prepayments and other debt balances
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Current liabilities
Loans

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
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Saudi Riyals
Less than 1-2 2- 5 years Carrying
one year years and more Total amount
164,308 . - 164,308 164,308
34,134 5 . 34,134 34,134
412,018 - . 412,018 397,126
5838 4,948 6,707 15T _ 6,46
66, 28H 4.9 8 &, 797 _6aB.0g3 G12,037
Saudi Riyals
Less than -2 2- 5 years Carrying
one year Years and more Total amount
199,280 199,280 199,280
35,520 35,520 35,520
574,136 - : 574,136 544,205
_So68 6,555 G617 23,240 22428

B 004 9,555 5.601F BT Bolqz8

expected time frame
for recovery December 31, December 31,
/settlement 2023 2022
Less than 1 year 88,303 63,079
Less than 1 year 372,804 304,685
Less than 1 year 373,978 414,349
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
More than 1 year 11,220 16,353
Less than 1 year 397,126 544,205
Less than 1 year 333,572 312,431
Less than 1 year 5,240 6,070
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28 Related party transactions

Significant balanees and transactions with related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are
as follows:

a)  Due to related parties — under trade and other payables:

Nature of
Name Relationship Transaction Transactions Closing Balance .
December December 31, December 31, December 31,
31, 2023 2022 2022 2022
Purchase of
LG Shaker Associate finished goods 671,272 532,284 162,068 189,231
A 51% owner of
LG Shaker Purchase of
LG Electronics Company (Note 7} finished goods 49,824 57,269 1,340 10,049
Total trade and other payable (note 16) 164,308 199,280
Key . Remuneration
management and meeting
personnel Key management  attendance fee 2,352 2,040 1,533 1,386
16§,841 200,666
b}  Key management personal compensation:
2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits 10,205 8,428
Post-employment benefits 677 339
10,972 8,767

During the current year, the company engaged in a purchase transaction of SR 360 thousands to supply electric
forklifts to the company from Abdullah Abunayyan Trading Company in which the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Abdulelah Abunayyan, and the Board Member, Azzam Al-Mudaihim, have an indirect interest.

During the current year, the company engaged in two maintenance contracts of SR 89.7 thousands with Masdar
Building Materials Company in which the Board Member, Musab Sulaiman Al-Muhaidib, has an indirect interest.

29 Capital management
The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business Management monitor the return on capital as well as the level

of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity”. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings, less cash, and cash
equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

The Group’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at December 31, 2023 was as follows:

2023 2022
Total liabilities 791,096 943,720
Less: cash and cash equivalents (18,843) (72.711)
Adjusted net debt 772,253 871,009
Total equity 717,720 672,245
Equity 717,729 672,245
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 108% 130%

30 Dividends

No cash dividends have been declared nor paid during the year ended December 31, 2023 (2022: nil).

On December 13, 2023, the Parent Company announced the Board of Directors’ recommendation to the
Extraordinary General Assembly to increase the capital by 15% by granting bonus shares to the Company’s
shareholders by capitalizing SR 72.7 million from Reserves. The legal formalities for issuance of the bonus shares
are still in process till the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements.
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31 Subsequent events

No material events occurred subsequent to the reporting date which could materially affect the consolidated financial
statements and the related disclosures for the year ended December 31, 2023, except for the Capital Market Authority
approval on the Board of Directors' recommendation to increase the company's capital disclosed in note 1 and note
30.

32 Disposal groups

32.1  Disposal group — Sale of EMS

On November 2, 2022, the Group signed an agreement with the minority shareholders for exiting its entire share of
investment in Energy Management services Emirates LLC {EMS) group for a transaction price of SR 14.5 million
which was a 74% owmed by the Group.

An analysis of the results in relation to the operations of disposal group during the year ended December 31, 2023,
and 2022 is as follows:

32.1.a Financial performance and cash flow information
For the year ended Dec 31,
2023 2022
Revenue - 1,087
Expenses - (4.397)
Loss before zakat and income tax - (3,310)
Income tax expense . =
Net loss from discontinued operations - (3.310)
Other comprehensive income from discontinued operations = 46
Total comprehensive loss from discontinued operations - (3,264)
Net cash used in operating activities = (1,532)
Net cash used in investing activities - .
Net cash used in financing activities - -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent from
the discontinued operations - (1.532)

32.1.b Assets and Liabilities of disposal group — Sale of EMS

The following assets and liabilities for sale in relation to the discontinued operations as at November 2, 2022 (date
of sale}:

2022
Assets relating to disposal group
Property and equipment 55
Trade and other receivables 16,059
Cash and cash equivalents 2,984
Total assets of disposal group 19,098
Liabilities relating to disposal group
Employee benefits obligation 3,720
Trade and other payables 5,076
Total liabilities of disposal group 8.706
Net assets of disposal group 10,302

The net gain on disposal was as follows:

2022
Consideration received .
Consideration receivable 14,500
Total consideration 14,500
Net assets of disposal group (74% of net assets) 7.624
Intangible asset recorded by the Company (note 5} 1,240
Balances due from EMS Company (22,291)
Net gain on disposal 1,073
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32 Disposal groups (continued)
g2.2 Disposal group — Sale of New Vision Company
On May 16, 2023, the Group signed an agreement for sale its entire share of investment in New vision Company for

a transaction price of SR 27.5 million which was 60% owned by the Group. An analysis of the results in relation to
the operations of disposal group during the year ended December 31, 2023, and 2022 is as follows:

32.2.a Financial performance and cash flow information

For the period For the year

ended May 16, ended Dec 31,

2023 2022

Revenue 39,782 89,335
Expenses (37,633 (83,980}

Profit before zakat and income tax 2,147 5,346

Income tax expense . - .

Net profit from discontinued operations 2,147 5,346

Other comprehensive income from discontinued operations £ .

Total comprehensive income from discontinued operations 2,147 5,346

Net cash generated from operating activities (805) 8,694

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (1.320) (1,157)
Net cash used in financing activities - (135) (8.717)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent from
the discontinued operations [2,260) L1, 150]

32.2.b Assets and liabilities of disposal group - Sale of New Vision Company

The following assets and liabilities in relation to the discontinued operations as at December 31, 2022 and May 16,
2023:

May 16, December 31,

2023 2022
Assets relating to disposal group
Property and equipment 13,152 13,266
Right of use assets 2,019 1,623
Intangible assets 669 742
Inventory 16,419 14,581
Trade and other receivables 41,671 42,680
Prepayments and other debt balances 2,085 1,864
Cash and cash eguivalents 5,720 7,980
Total assets of dispoesal group 82,635 82,726
Liabilities relating to disposal group
Leage liabilities 9,827 1,415
Short term loans 1,903 5,874
Trade and other payables 23.856 11.801
Total liabilities of disposal group 35.586 19.090
Net assets of disposal group 47,049 63.646
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32 Disposal groups {continued)

32.2  Disposal group — Sale of New Vision Company {continued)

32.2.b Assets and liabilities of disposal group — Sale of New Vision Company (continued)

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating to
discontinued operations:

2023 2022
Depreciation charge of property and equipment {note 4.1) - 1,408
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (note 4.2) - 1,069
Interest on lease liabilities (note 4.2) - 102
impairment losses on trade receivables (note 6) - 423
Finance costs - 741
The net gain from discontinued operations was as follows:
2023 2022
Net loss from EMS . (3,310)
Net gain from new vision 2,147 5,346
Net gain from disposal of EMS = 1,073
Net loss from disposal of New Vision (695) -
Total gain from discontinued operations 1,452 3,109
33 Contingencies and commitments

The Group has the following as at December 31, 2023.

a) Outstanding bank guarantees of SR 87.2 million (December 31, 2022: SR 31.g million) issued by the lqcal and
foreign banks in respect of import of finished goods and other supplies.

b) QOutstanding bank letters of credit of SR 81.7 million (December 31, 2022: SR 68.0 million} issued against
import of finished goods and other supplies.

c) The Group has a contractual obligation with regard to purchase of lot of land ameunting to SR 10.9 million as
of December 31, 2022,
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